
u.s. Department of Labor 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
1141 Monclimar Drive 
Suite 1006 
Mobile, AL 36609 
Phone: :!51-441-6131 Fax: ::!51-441-6396 

Citation and Notification of Penalty 

To: 
D & J Enterprises, Inc. 
3495 Lee Road 
Auburn, AL 36832 

Inspection Site: 
2 701 Frederick Road 
Opelika. AL 36801 

Inspection Numbel': 1118457 
Inspection D~\te(s): 0 1I13/20 16 - 01113/2016 
Issuance Date: 03/14/2016 

This Citation and Notitication of Penalty (this Citation) describes violations of the Occupationa Safety and 
Health Act of 1970. The penalty(ies) listed herein is (are) based on these violations. YOli must abate the 
violations referred to in this Citation by the dates listed and pay the penalties proposed, unless within 15 working 
days (excluding. weekends and Federal holidays) from your receipt of this Citation and Notification of Penalty 
you either call to schedule an informal conference (see puragl'aplt below) or you mail a notice of contest to 
the U.S. Deprutment of Labor Area Oftl~e at the address shown above. Please refer to the enclosed booklet 
(OSHA 3000) which outlines your rights and responsibilities and which should be read in cOtliullcrion with this 
form. Issuance of this Citation does not constitute a tlnding that a violation of the Act ha<; occurred unless there 
is a failure to contest as provided for in the Act or. if contested. unless this Citation is aftlnned by the Review 
Commission or a court. 

Posting - The law requires that a copy of this Citation and Notification of Penalty be posted immediately in a 
prominent place. at or neru' the location of the violation(s) cited herein. or, ifit is not practicable because ofthe 
nature of the employer's operations, where it will be readily observable by all affected employees. This Citation 
must remain posted until the violation(s) cited herein has (have) been abated. or for 3 working days (exc.luding 
\-veekends and Federal holidays). whichever is longer. 

Informal Conference - An infonnal conference is not required. However, if you wish to have such a 
conference you may request one with the Area Director during the 15 working day contest period. During Stich 
an int<mnal con terence you may present any evidence or views whkh you believe \"Quld support an adjustment 
to the citation(s) and/or penalty(ies). 
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[fyou are considering a request for an infonnal conference to discuss any issues related to this Citation and 
Notification of Penalty, you must take care to schedule it early enough to allow time to contest after the infonnal 
conference. should you decide to do so. Please keep in mind that a written lerrer of intent to contest must be 
submitted to the Area Director within 15 working days of your receipt of this Citatioll. The running of this 
contest period is not interrupted by an informal con terence. 

If you decide to request an infonnal conference, please complete, remove and post the Notice to Employees next 
to this Citation and Notitication of Penalty as soon as the time, date. and place of the informal conterence have 
been determined. Be sure to bring to the conference any and all supporting documentation of existing conditions 
as well as any abatement steps taken thus far. rf conditions \ .... arrant, we can enter into an informal settlement 
aQreemenr \vhich arnicablv resolves this matter without litigation or contest. 
~ ., ~ 

Right to Contest - You have the right to contest this Citation and Notification of Penalty. You lIIay contest 
all citation items or only individual items. You llIay also contest proposed penalties and/or abatement dates 
without contesting the underlying violations. Unless you infOl'm the Area Director in writing that you intend 
to contest the citlltion(s) and/or Ilrol)osed penalty(ies) Within 15 worldng days after receipt, the citation(s) 
and the Pl'oposed I)enalty(ies) will become a final ol'der of the Occupational Safety and Health Review 
Commission and may not be reviewed by anv court or agenev, 

Penalty Payment - Penalties are due \vithin 15 working days of receipt of this notification unless contested. 
(See the enclosed booklet and the additional infonnation provided related to the Debt Collection Acr of 1982.) 
Make your check or money order payable to "DOL-OSHA". Please indicate the Inspection Number on the 
remittance. You can also make your payment electronically on W\.vw.pav.gQY. On the left side of the pay.gov 
homepage. you will see an option to Search Public Forms. Type "OSHA" and click Go. From the results, click 
on OSHA Penalty Pa,rment Form. The direct link is: 

https://www.pay.gov/paygov/fonnslformlnstance.html?agencyFonn[d=53090334. 

You will be required co enter your inspection number when making the payment. Payments can be made by 
credit card or Automated Clearing House (ACH) using your banking information. Payments of $:25,000 or more 
require a Transaction ID, and also IllllSt be paid using ACH. [fyou require a Transaction 10, pleaSe contact the 
OSHA Debt Collection Team at (20:2) 693-2170. 

OSHA does not agree to any restrictions or conditions or endorsements put on any check. money order, or 
electronic payment for less than the full amount due. and will process the payments as if these restrictions or 
conditions do notexist. 

Notification of Corrective Action - For each violation which you do not contest, you mllst provide 
abatement certificaliQII to the Area Director ofthe OSHA ofiice issuing the citation and identified above. This 
abatement certification is to be provided by letter within 10 calendar days after each abatement date. Abatement 
certification includes the date and method of abatement. (fthe citation indicates that the violation was corrected 
during the inspection, no abatement celtification is required for that item. The abatement certification letter must 
be posted at the location where the violation appeared and the corrective action took place or employees must 
otherwise be etfectively informed about abatement activities. A sample abatement certification letter is enclosed 
'with this Citation. In addition, \vhere the citation indicates that abalemellt documentatioll is necessaJ), evidence 
of the purchase or repair of equipmenr, photographs or video, receipts. training records, etc., verifYing that 
abatement has occurred is required to be provided to the Area Director. 
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Employer Discrimination Unlawful- The law prohibits discrimination by an employer against an 
employee for tiling a complaint or for exercising any rights under this Act. An employee who believes that 
he/she has been discriminated against may tile a complaint no later than 30 days after the discrimination 
occurred , ... ·ith the U.S. Department of Labor Area Office at the address sho\vl1 above. 

Employer Rights and Responsibilities - The enclosed booklet (OSHA 3000) outl ines additional 
employer rights and responsibilities and should be read in conjunction with this notification. 

Notice to Employees - The law gives an employee or his/her representative the opportunity to object to any 
abatement date set for a violation if he/she believes the date to be unreasonable. The contest must be mailed to 
the U.S. Department of Labor Area Office at the address shown above and postmarked within 15 working days 
(excluding weekends and Federal holidays) of the receipt by the employer of this Citation and Notification of 
Penalty. 

Inspection Activity Data - You ~hould be aware that OSHA publishes information on its inspection and 
citation activity on the [nremet under the provisions ofthe Electronic Freedom oflntormation Act. The 
inttwl11ation related to these alleged violations v.'ilI be posted when our system indicates that you have received 
this citation. You are encouraged to review the intormation concel'l1ing your establishment at www.osha.gov. [f 
)'ou have any dispute with the accuracy of the information displayed, please contact this office. 
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u.s. Department of Labor 
Occupational Satety and Health Administration 

NOTICE TO EMPLOYEES OF INFORMAL CONFERENCE 

An informal conference has been scheduled with OSHA to discuss the citation(s) issued on 

03/ l4/20 16. The conference will be held by telephone or at the OSHA office located at 1141 

Montlimar Drive, Suite 1006, Mobile, AL 36609 OIl ________ at 

. Employees andior representatives of employees have a right to attend an 

informal conference. 
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CERTIFICATION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION WORKSHEET 

Compa.ny Name: D & J Enterprises, [nco 
Inspection Site: 270 I Frederick Road, Opelika, AL 36801 
Issuance Date: 03/14/2016 

Inspection Number: 1118457 

List the specific method of correction for each item on this citation in this package that does not read "Corrected 
During Inspection" and return to: U.S. Department of Labor- Occupatiollal Safety nlld Health 
Administration, 1141 Montlimal' Drive, Suite 1.006. Mobile, AL 36609 

Citation Number and Item Number was corrected on _______________ _ 
By (Method of Abatement): ___________________________ _ 

Citation Number and Item Number was corrected on ------------------
By(~ethodofAba~nlen0: ____________________________ _ 

Citation Number and Item Number was corrected on -------------------------
By(M~h~ofAbMemoo0; _____________________________ _ 

Citation Number and [tern Number \ .... a5 con'ected on 
By (Method of batement): ______ . ______________________ _ 

Citation Number and Item Number was corrected on --------------------
By (Method of Abatement): _________ --------------------

Citation Number and Item Number was corrected on ---------------------By (Method of Abatement): ____________________________ _ 

I certifY that the intomlation contained in this doclllllenr is accurate and that the affected employees and their 
representatives have been infonued of the abatement. 

Signature Date 

Typed or Printed Name Title 

NOTE: 29 USC 666(g) who\!v<!r kll\1wingly lIlak<!s an) fillsc statements, representat ion or certification in an) .lpplicJ.cion . rc.:ord, plan or 
other documents tiled or r~quired to b~ maintain~d pursUJnt to th~ Act shall. UPOII ollvII:tioll. be punished by a fine of O\)t more than 
$1 <'1.000 or by imprisonment of not mor<! than 6 months or both. 

POSTINC: A CIlpy ofcolllpleted COIT<!ccivc Action Worksheet should b<! posted tor employee review 
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U.8. Department of Labor Inspection Numbel': 1118457 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 01113/2016 - 01113/2016 

Issuance- Dnte: 03! 14/20 16 

Citation and Notification of' Penaltv 

Company Name: 0 &, J Enterprises, Inc. 
Inspection Site: 270 I Frederick. Road. Opelika. AL 3680 I 

Citation 1 Item 1 Type of Violation: Willful 

::!9 CFR 19::!6.65::!(a)( I): Each employee in an excavation was not protected from cave-ins by an 
adequate protective system designed in accordance \vith 19 CFR 1926.651 paragraph (b) or (cl of this 
section: 

a) 2701 Frederick Road, Opelika, AI,; On or about January 14,2016 the employer exposed employees 
to cave-in hazards in that employees were allowed to work inside of a trench measlLring eight to ten 
teet deep, twenty feet wide. and eighteen feet in length [hat was dug in class B soiL The employer had 
not complied with the standard in that employees were not protected from cave-ins by an adequate 
protective system and the excavation was sloped at an angle steeper than o ne and one-half hori.zontal to 
one vertical. 

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM 

Date Bv Which Violation Must be Abated: 
" 

Proposed Penalty: 
03/24/2016 
$54450.00 

Se..: pag..:s I Ihrough 4 of thiS CilaU,)n and NllUlic31ion Of Penalty lor 1II1<,nnalll)l\ on employer and employee righll. Imd respl)llsibilities. 
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: ll18457 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 01/13/2016 - 01/13/2016 

Issuance D;lte: 031 [4120 [6 

Citation and Notification of Penalty 

Company Name: D & J Enterprises, Inc. 
Inspection Site: 270 I Frederick Road. Opelika. AL 3680 I 

Citation 2 Item L Type of Violation: Repeat 

29 CFR 1926.21 (b )(2): The employer shall instmct each employee in the recognition and avoidance of 
unsafe conditions and the regulations applicable to his work environment to control or eliminate any 
hazards or other exposure to illness or injw)" in that: 

a) 2701 Frederick Road, Opelika, AL; On or about January 14, 2016: employees entered and worked in 
a trench measuring eight to ten feet deep that was not protected from cave-ins by an adequate 
protective system. Employees had not been provided effective information and training on recognizing 
and avoiding cave-in hazards on tbe work site. 

D & J Enterprises, Inc. was previously cited for a violation of this occupational safety c.md heaJth 
standard or its equivalent standard 29 CFR t 926.21 (b )(2), which was comained in OSHA inspection 
number 1019817 citation nurriber 1 item number 2 and was affirmed as a tinal order on October 14, 
1015, witb respect to a workplace located at Opelika. AL. 

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM 

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 
Proposed Penalty: 

03/24/2016 
$9900.00 

See pllges I through 4 of this Cltatloll l1nd Nuntic:uion of Penalty tllr IIIfonnation on employer and employee: right!. and resp<msibiliries. 
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U.S. Department of Labor 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
1141 Montlimar Drive 
Suite 1006 
Mobile, AL 36609 
Phone: 251-441-6131 Fa..x: 251-441-6396 

INVOICE/ 
DEBT COLLECTION NOTICE 

Company Name: 
Insilection Site: 
Issuance Date: 

D & .J Entel'prises, Inc. 
2701 Ft'ederick Road. Opelika, AL 36801 
03/14/2016 

Summary of Penni ties fOl' Inspectioll Numbel' 

Citation 1, Willful 

Citation 2, Repeat 

TOTAL PROPOSED .PENALTIES 

1118457 

$54450.00 

$9900.00 

$64350.00 

To avoid additional charges. please remit payment promptly to this Area Office for the total amount of the 
uncontested penalties summarized above. Make your check or money order payable to: "DOL-OSHA". Please 
indicate OSHA's (nspection Number (indicated above) on the remittance. You can also make your payment 
electronically on www.pay.go\'. On the left" side of the pay.gov homepage, you will see an option to Search 
Public Forms. Type "OSHA" and click Go. From the results, click Oil OSHA Penalty Payment Form. The 
direct link is https:/lw,vw.pav.gov/pavgov/forms/fonn[nstance.html?agencyFormld=53090334. You will 
be required to enter your inspection number when making the payment. Payments can be made by credit card or 
Automated Clearing House (ACH) lIsing your banking intonnation. Payments of$25.000 or more require a 
Transaction lD, and also must be paid using ACH. If you require a Transaction rD. please contac( the OSHA 
Debt Collection Team at (202) 693-2170. 

OSHA does not agree to any restrictions or conditions or endorsements put on any check, money order. or 
electronic payment for less than the full amount due, and will cash the check or money order as if these 
restrictions or conditions do not exist. 

If a personal check is issued, it will be converted into an electronic fund transfer (EFT). This means that our 
bank will copy your check and use the account information on it to electronically debit your account for the 
amount of dIe check. The debit from your account will then usuall) occur within 24 hours and will be shown on 
your regular account statement. You will not receive your original check back. The hank will destroy your 
original check, but will keep a copy of it. If the EFT canllot be completed because of insufficient funds or closed 
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account, (he bank will attempr ro make the transfer up to 2 times. 

Pursuant to the Debt Collection Act of 1982 (Public Law 97-365) and regulations of the U.S. Department of 
L:1bor (29 CFR Prut 20). the Occupational Safety and Health Administmtion is required to assess interest. 
delinquent charges, and administrative costs for the collection of delinquent penalty debts for violations of the 
Occupational Safety and Health Act. 

Interest: Interest charges will be assessed at an annual rate determined by the Secretary of the Treasury on all 
penalty debt amounts not paid within one month (30 calendar days) ofthe date on which the debt amount 
becomes due and payable (penalty due date). The ClllTent interest rate is one percent (I %). Interest will accrue 
from the date on which the penalty amounts (as proposed or adjusted) become a final order of the Occupational 
Safety and Health Review Commission (that is, 15 working days from your receipt of the Citation and 
Notitication of Penalty). unless you file a notice of contest. Interest charges will be waived if the full amount 
owed is paid within 30 calendar days of the tinal order. 

Delin<Juent Charges: A debt is considered delinquent ifit has not been paid within one month (30 calendar 
days) of the penalty due date or if a satisfactory payment anoangement has not been made. ffthe debt remains 
delinquent for more than 90 calendar days, a delinquent charge of six percent (6%) per annum will be assessed 
accruing from the date that the debt became delinquent. 

Administrative Costs: Agencies of the Department of Labor are required to assess addit ional charges for the 
recovery of delinqllenr debts. These additional charges are administrative costs incurred by the Agency in its 
attempt to collect an unpaid debt. Administrative costs will be assessed for demand letters sent in all attempt to 
collect the unpaid deht-. -----

Date 
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